
 
 
 
 
 
 

Executive Committee 
Meeting Agenda Packet 

 
 

December 7, 2017, 12:00 p.m. 
 
 

Cascades West Center 
1400 Queen Avenue, SE 

2nd Floor, Large Conference Room 
Albany, OR 97322 

 
 
 
 
 

  
The meeting locations are wheelchair accessible. If you need special assistance please 

contact Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments at 
541-967-8720, forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting. 

 



 
1400 Queen Ave SE • Suite 201 • Albany, OR  97322 

  (541) 967-8720    •    FAX (541) 967-6123 

 
 

 

 
MEMBER GOVERNMENTS — COUNTIES: Benton, Lincoln, and Linn CITIES: Adair Village, Albany, Brownsville, Corvallis, Depoe Bay, 
Halsey, Harrisburg, Lebanon, Lincoln City, Lyons, Millersburg, Monroe, Newport, Philomath, Scio, Siletz, Sweet Home, Tangent, Toledo, 
Waldport, Yachats OTHER: Confederated Tribes of Siletz Indians and Port of Newport 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
AGENDA 

December 7, 2017 
  12:00 p.m. 

Cascades West Center 
1400 Queen Avenue SE 

 Albany, OR. 97322  
 
 

 An Executive Session may be called as deemed necessary by the Chair, pursuant to 
ORS 192.660. 

 
1. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes (Chair Sharon Konopa) 

(12:00 – 12:05 p.m.) 
 

Minutes of the October 26, 2017 Executive Committee meeting will be reviewed for approval 
(Page 3). 

 
ACTION:  Motion to approve the October 26, 2017 Executive Committee meeting 

minutes. 

2. CelebrateLBL Debrief (Executive Director Fred Abousleman) 
(12:05 – 12:20 p.m.) 
 
Executive Director Abousleman will provide an assessment of CelebrateLBL, the OCWCOG 
Annual Dinner which took place on November 2, 2017. 
 

 ACTION:  Information only, no action needed. 

3. OCWCOG Program Updates (All Program Directors) 
(12:20 – 12:30 p.m.) 
 
Staff will be available to answer any questions from the Executive Committee on the 
program updates (Page 11, Page 13). 
 

 ACTION:  Information only, no action needed. 

1



4. January Full Board Agenda Items (Chair Sharon Konopa) 
(12:30 – 12:35 p.m.) 

 
The Executive Committee will review and comment on proposed agenda items for the next 
Board of Directors Meeting. Staff will present items for the agenda known to date, including: 

 
1. Consent Calendar 

a. Approval of previous Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
b. OCWCOG Board of Directors Meeting Schedule 
c. Financial Update for the period of July 2017 – November 2017 

2. Review of Executive Director’s Accomplishments and Goals 
3. Executive Session 
4. Reconvene Into Regular Session 
5. Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Dues 
6. Topics of Regional Interest 
7. Other Business 
8. Adjournment 

 
5. Other Business 
 (12:35 – 12:40 p.m.) 
 
6. Adjournment 
 (12:40 p.m.) 

 

2



 

 

OREGON CASCADES WEST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

October 26, 2017 
   
MEMBERS: Mayor Sharon Konopa, Albany; Commissioner Anne Schuster, Benton County; 

Mayor Biff Traber, Corvallis; Councilor Bob Elliott, Lebanon; and Councilor Dann 
Cutter, Waldport. 

 
STAFF: Executive Director Fred Abousleman; Deputy Director Lydia George; Finance 

Director Sue Forty; Community and Economic Development (CED) Director Phil 
Warnock; Senior and Disability Services (SDS) Director Randi Moore; 
Community Services Program (CSP) Manager Jennifer Moore; and Executive 
Assistant Jennifer Kelley. 

 
VIDEO: Commissioner Bill Hall, Lincoln County. 
 
GUESTS: City Manager Mark Shepard, Corvallis; City Administrator Scott McDowell, 

Brownsville. 
 
The Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments’ (OCWCOG) Executive Committee 
Meeting was called to order by Chair Sharon Konopa at 9:03 am on October 26, 2017 at the 
Cascades West Center in Albany. 
   
1. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes  

Introductions were made.  
 
Commissioner Anne Schuster motioned to approve the August 24, 2017 Executive 
Committee meeting minutes, Mayor Biff Traber seconded. Motion passed unanimously. 
 

2. Advocacy Presentation 
Executive Director Fred Abousleman introduced Brownsville City Administrator Scott 
McDowell and Corvallis City Manager Mark Shepard, and stated that they wished to attend 
today’s Executive Committee meeting to discuss advocacy surrounding legislation. 
Executive Director Abousleman stated that City/County Managers/Administrators had been 
discussing this topic at their monthly meetings. City Administrator McDowell and City 
Manager Shepard had agreed to present to the Committee on behalf of this group. 
 
City Administrator McDowell thanked the Committee, and presented a walk-on handout for 
reference. City Administrator McDowell stated that at City/County Manager/Administrator 
meetings, discussions have occurred around policy action and advocacy. Suggestions have 
been made for approaching these issues, focusing on advocacy for programs and services, 
building better relationships with Representatives, and bringing more awareness by 
broadening the context of what is happening in both large and small cities. City 
Administrator McDowell stated that Oregon Legislature Annual Sessions Amendment, 
Measure 71 (Measure 71) has increased the Legislature’s workload by more than double, 
and over 4,000 bills were considered this year alone.  
 
City Administrator McDowell stated that he has spoken with Chair Konopa previously, 
regarding having a subcommittee to engage with one another, find similarities, and develop 

3



plans to move forward. He added that if multiple jurisdictions come together to talk to 
multiple Representatives simultaneously, a broader base of voters would be represented. 
 
City Administrator McDowell stated that local officials represent a line of defense for their 
jurisdictions, and currently decisions are being made by people who may not understand the 
impact of those decisions. He added that by working together and potentially utilizing the 
skill sets of those who have previously done advocacy work, all jurisdictions would be 
collectively better represented.  
 
City Administrator McDowell stated that the League of Oregon Cities (LOC) is now over-
burdened due to Measure 71, creating the inability for action on many issues. City 
Administrator McDowell suggested starting the process of collaboration slowly, and 
referenced the handout provided as potential ideas for consideration. He added that there is 
currently the structure in place for collaboration, via the monthly City/County 
Manager/Administrator meetings, and suggested potentially inviting Representatives to 
those meetings on a yearly basis. City Administrator McDowell stated that in initial efforts to 
reach out to Representatives, there has been positive feedback regarding the potential to 
hear from multiple officials from multiple jurisdictions, all at one meeting. 
 
City Manager Shepard stated that the City of Corvallis has a robust response to Legislature, 
and tries to share any information they gain. However, if outreach could be done in a way 
that reaches multiple Representatives at one time, and those Representatives are hearing 
from multiple jurisdictions on the same issue, there is potential to have an impact on issues 
beyond those LOC takes on. City Manager Shepard emphasized the importance of early 
outreach, as most legislative work is one behind the scenes, months ahead of legislative 
sessions, as there is not enough time during the sessions to gather all needed information 
on an issue.  
 
City Manager Shepard stated that jurisdictions need to be more proactive as increases in 
lobbying are sometimes pushing legislative votes in a way that is counter to what 
jurisdictions may want.  
 
Mayor Traber stated that having a common voice and consistency makes sense, and having 
OCWCOG be part of the process makes sense. He added that when there is a common 
view Regionally, jurisdictions could also advocate on an individual level regarding those 
concerns, as that could potentially be even more important. 
 
Commissioner Schuster asked whether County Managers would be included. City 
Administrator McDowell stated that County Managers and Administrators would absolutely 
be included, and noted that Linn County is lucky to have Ralph Wyatt, two full-time lobbyists, 
and Commissioners lobbying their points of view.  
 
Chair Konopa stated that back when Bill Wagner was Executive Director, OCWCOG would 
bring in elected Representatives. However, meetings were primarily based around Senior 
Services. Chair Konopa expressed support in getting back into that routine, but while 
making sure advocacy would also be more localized, such as by County. 
 
Executive Director Abousleman reminded the Committee that OCWCOG is not authorized to 
advocate on any issue unless the Board agrees on a position and approves advocacy on 
that issue. He stated that any advocacy that was pushed forward by City/County 
Managers/Administrators for OCWCOG support would first need to go to the Board for 
approval. 
 

4



Councilor Dann Cutter expressed concerns over duplication of efforts, and stated that 
theoretically, LOC would be addressing issues in many ways. He added that if OCWCOG is 
advocating a broad message, some smaller issues may be diluted. 
 
Executive Director Abousleman stated that one larger issue is that our Region needs more 
transportation dollars. City Administrator McDowell stated that another example could be 
wetlands. If the City of Millersburg has an issue with wetlands, their State Representatives 
may do what they can, but if all three Counties bring up the issue, even if the Board does 
not take a position, the issue still has a broader impact on policymakers. 
 
Mayor Traber expressed support that any advocacy message brought forward would be 
checked by the OCWCOG Board.  
 
Councilor Cutter asked whether the mechanism to bring advocacy suggestions to the Board 
already exists. Mayor Traber stated that there is not currently a mechanism to bring issues 
forward, and added that with wetlands, City Managers could potentially bring solutions to 
Representatives, making their opinions more likely to be represented in the Legislature. 
Mayor Traber stated that there is value in having experts discuss these topics. 
 
Councilor Cutter expressed concerns around resources, as well as the potential to dilute a 
message in order to broaden the appeal, thus lessening the potential impact. He stated that 
resources would need to increase, in order to make sure current OCWCOG advisory 
councils and advocacy resources would not get diminished. 
 
Chair Konopa stated that she could also potentially see unintended consequences. She 
added that every legislator hears from the same lobbyists on a regular basis, and it’s 
unknown what weight those lobbyists carry. Regional perspectives on certain issues could 
carry additional weight.  
 
Chair Konopa stated that some legislators will occasionally call elected officials and ask their 
opinion on issues, but that elected official does not represent the Region as a whole. She 
added that if a committee is formed to focus on advocating for Regional issues, elected 
officials should be the ones voting on which issues move forward to Representatives. This 
would protect City/County Managers/Administrators, as elected officials on the Board would 
be the target of any criticism.  
 
City Manager Shepard stated that concerns about message dilution are important and 
understood, and that the role of the Board is to decide what to do with the recommendations 
made by City/County Managers/Administrators. City Manager Shepard stated that 
City/County Managers/Administrators are accustomed to that role, and would be happy to 
work within the role of a technical advisory group. 
 
City Administrator McDowell stated that the committee would bring issues forward to the 
Board, to make sure everyone is on the same page.  
 
Executive Director Abousleman stated that there is a nimbleness in having City/County 
Managers/Administrators work on these issues, and reiterated that they would be operating 
as a technical advisory committee to the Board. The Board would ultimately decide what to 
do. Legislators could be brought in to have a conversation regarding the issues the Board 
chose as important. 
 
Chair Konopa stated that there may be a need to approach the Board to add a line item to 
dues for lobbying. Executive Director Abousleman suggested trying the process for one 
round of legislation prior to discussing fees or dues increases. He added that he has been 

5



doing advocacy for a long time, can manage the process, and the City/County 
Managers/Administrators will self-regulate as well. He also stated that the process does not 
need to be complex, as these conversations are already happening at monthly City/County 
Manager/Administrator meetings. 
 
Commissioner Schuster stated that this process would simply be connecting what already 
happens at the meetings, with the OCWCOG Board. Executive Director Abousleman 
agreed. 
 
Executive Director Abousleman stated that OCWCOG automatically accepts the positions of 
LOC and the Association of Oregon Counties (AOC), because our members are AOC and 
LOC members. He added that OCWCOG automatically supports those organizations, 
unless our Board specifically dictates otherwise.  
 
Commissioner Schuster stated that AOC is trying to work more collaboratively with LOC, as 
often the issues parallel each other. This suggestion could be a way to assist in that 
collaboration. Commissioner Schuster added that Benton County does not always agree 
with AOC, and all Regional jurisdictions may not always share an opinion on legislature. 
Executive Director Abousleman stated that if there was not agreement among the Board, 
the issue would not move forward. 
 
Mayor Traber stated that there could be a subset of individuals that continue to work on an 
issue outside of the OCWCOG framework, if there is not agreement by the Board. 
 
Councilor Cutter stated that a Council may feel strongly in opposition to an opinion of the 
City Managers/Administrators, and that relationships between Councils and their 
Managers/Administrators vary. Councilor Cutter expressed concern that elected officials 
may not be represented adequately.  
  
City Administrator McDowell stated that City/County Managers/Administrators are ready to 
move forward as directed. 
 
Commissioner Schuster stated that as Co-Chair of the Housing Subcommittee for AOC, 
housing could potentially be an issue of Regional interest, and could provide information to 
take back to AOC. She added that many times, City/County Managers/Administrators are 
not heard by Representatives, but often they have more technical knowledge than elected 
officials.  
 
City Manager Shepard stated that there will be lively discussions, and opinions may not 
always align. He added that within the group, larger issues will not always apply to all 
jurisdictions in the same way, but stated that this group could act as a “missing middle,” 
providing a needed middle ground between larger groups like AOC and LOC, and individual 
jurisdictions.  
 
Commissioner Schuster asked how the group would interface with the Board. Executive 
Director Abousleman stated that the group would approach the Board with a potential issue, 
and see how/whether the Board wants to move forward. City Manager Shepard added that 
communication would ideally happen in both directions. 
 
Commissioner Bill Hall stated that he likes the concept, and believes it is worthy of further 
exploration. He added that Executive Director Abousleman’s advocacy experience is under-
utilized, and with Board approval, he could be used as another Regional voice. 
 

6



Chair Konopa asked for the concept to be explored further, with a more comprehensive plan 
to be brought to the Board. Executive Director Abousleman agreed. 
 
Councilor Cutter expressed that bringing issues to the Board is not nimble, as the Board 
only meets every other month, and asked for a proposed solution to that issue. Executive 
Director Abousleman stated that in the past, he has seen Boards set broad policy goals, and 
trust that the Executive Director and committee members would not advocate 
inappropriately, or in a way that may bring harm to the Board. There would be an additional 
understanding that provocative issues would require Board approval. 
 
Councilor Cutter stated that he doesn’t necessarily trust City/County 
Managers/Administrators from other jurisdictions, as he hasn’t hired them or built a 
relationship with them. He also added that LOC is not as effective as would be ideal. 
 
Executive Director Abousleman stated that the group would do their best to make sure there 
is consensus, and to not act on anything controversial. He added that even if the Board 
does not take a stance, it would be good to have individuals share information for 
consideration and collaboration. 

 
Commissioner Schuster asked how maneuvering would occur when topics are controversial. 
City Administrator McDowell responded that jurisdictions have some issues in common, 
such as the previous focus on recreational immunity. He added that there will be some 
controversial issues to face, but those issues would not require Board movement or 
OCWCOG involvement. He also added that there will be merits to discussing these issues.  
 
Mayor Traber stated that this conversation highlights the need for more communication 
among jurisdictions. 
 
City Administrator McDowell stated that another approach to representing issues could not 
necessarily be through taking a particular stance on the issue, but rather pointing out that an 
issue should be decided at a more localized level than the State.  
 
City Administrator McDowell and City Manager Shepard left the meeting. 
 

3. OCWCOG Annual Dinner  
Executive Director Abousleman stated that current registration has the number of attendees 
for Celebrate Linn, Benton, Lincoln (CelebrateLBL) at approximately 180. He added that 
around $4,000 in silent auction items have been donated. Executive Director Abousleman 
stated that when considering sponsorships and donations, the event should roughly break-
even, financially. He expressed that OCWCOG had hoped to bring in more in sponsorships 
and donations, but the fundraising process happened too late in the year for many 
businesses. 
 
Chair Konopa stated that the Mid-Willamette Family YMCA had created a new event on the 
same evening as CelebrateLBL. Executive Director Abousleman stated that there were 
other unforeseen events that happened this year, to which organizations donated funds, 
such as natural disasters. 
 
Executive Director Abousleman stated that all award winners would be present at the event, 
and most nominees. He added that many businesses approached for sponsorships 
committed to supporting next year’s event, even if they did not support this year’s. 
 
There was a discussion about potentially picking an earlier date for next year’s event. 
 

7



Chair Konopa asked whether there were sponsorships or other avenues of support from 
Albany’s senior facilities. Executive Director Abousleman stated that none of Albany’s senior 
facilities had provided financial support. 
 
Commissioner Schuster asked whether these facilities had been approached in-person. 
SDS Director Randi Moore stated that she had approached them personally. 
 
Chair Konopa stated that while the City loves the senior facilities, they put a large burden on 
services in the community, in particular services that OCWCOG provides, and it would be 
nice to see them give back.  
 
Executive Director Abousleman stated that in January, fundraising will begin for next year’s 
event, including a harder press for sponsorships from senior facilities.  
 
Executive Director Abousleman stated that this year’s event was a good learning 
experience, and has led OCWCOG to rethink strategies. He stated that Rogue Ales & Spirits 
(Rogue) had committed to donating alcohol for the event, but our contact people are no 
longer working there, so Rogue has backed out of that commitment. Councilor Cutter stated 
that he has personal contacts at Rogue, and suggested that for next year’s event, Board 
members should possibly get involved as representatives. 
 
Finance Director Sue Forty stated that she had talked to many potential sponsors, and 
repeatedly had issues with being too late in their budgeting processes. She added that 
some organizations were also very specific in who they support through donations, such as 
only supporting programs or organizations that help children. 
 
Mayor Traber stated that CelebrateLBL also does not have an established identity as an 
event. 
 
Councilor Cutter asked whether the event is just paying for itself. Executive Director 
Abousleman confirmed this, but stated that last year we had zero event recognition for 
Meals on Wheels. This year, OCWCOG had Tapas and Treasures, and will host 
CelebrateLBL.  
 
Mayor Traber stated that other benefits should be explored, like visibility for the agency, and 
the recognition of local leaders. Benefits should be compared with costs to determine 
whether the event is worth doing in the future.  
 
There was a discussion on potential media outreach strategies. 
 

4. OCWCOG Program Updates 
Mayor Traber asked about the Safe Rides to School program, and funding from the 
transportation bill. 
 
CED Director Phil Warnock stated that new funding in the transportation bill was for 
infrastructure projects. He added that rules had not yet been written regarding application 
and disbursement. He anticipated that schools would need to have an action plan identifying 
need, and stated that OCWCOG wants to make sure communities are well-positioned to 
receive funding. 
 
Chair Konopa asked about an economic development study email she’d received, and 
asked whether funds were needed for the study. Executive Director Abousleman stated that 
OCWCOG, Oregon State University, and Linn-Benton Community College are each 

8



contributing $1,500 to costs, which total $9,000. Commissioner Schuster stated that Benton 
County will be contributing $1,500, as well. 
 
Mayor Traber asked to get more details at a later date, regarding the interviews that will be 
conducted in the survey. He stated that he wants to make sure that the interviews will serve 
the purpose of understanding what large regional companies would like to gain out of 
economic development, as well as if they are willing to contribute financially.  
 
Executive Director Abousleman stated that the study is exactly the project requested at the 
last economic development meeting, where the budget discussed had been $7,000-
$10,000. He added that in discussions with Steve Clark and Greg Hamann, there had been 
a consensus that for the study to be the most cohesive and informative, it would need to be 
more formal. Executive Director Abousleman stated that interview questions had not yet 
been determined. He added that the second piece to the study was determining how to 
select businesses. 
 
Mayor Traber clarified that he was not necessarily interested in knowing the specific 
questions that will be asked, but rather the topic of questions, and a general idea of who will 
be interviewed. Executive Director Abousleman stated that 15 total businesses will be 
interviewed, with five smaller, medium, and larger in size. 
 
Chair Konopa stated that the consultant from EcoNorthwest is part of the cost, and based on 
what the City of Albany has spent previously for similar services, $9,000 seems affordable. 
 
Commissioner Schuster asked whether Linn County has committed any funds, as the study 
was Commissioner Roger Nyquist’s idea. Executive Director Abousleman stated that Linn 
County has not contributed funds. 
 
Councilor Cutter asked whether the study can move forward prior to having all the funds. 
Executive Director Abousleman stated that it cannot, and contracts still need to be signed. 
 
Executive Director Abousleman stated that OCWCOG’s Meal Site Coordinator, Diane 
Harvey, had retired. CSP Manager Jennifer Moore will be recruiting for that position, and 
has potential new visions for the Meals on Wheels program. 
 
Executive Director Abousleman stated that he would be doing another viewing of a potential 
new space in Corvallis for the Benton County Veterans Services Office. He added that 
OCWCOG has been working with Samaritan Health Services staff on possible 
configurations, and making sure we have enough space.  
 
Executive Director Abousleman stated that Finance Director Forty may be helping the City of 
Toledo with finances, and that OCWCOG is looking at potentially doing some staffing 
recruitments for members. 
 

5. December Board of Directors Agenda Items  
Items presented for the December 7th Board of Directors meeting agenda were as follows: 

 
1. Consent Calendar 

a. Approval of previous Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
b. Financial Update for the period of July 2017 – October 2017 

2. OCWCOG Budget Committee and process for Fiscal Year 2018 
3. Senior and Disability Services Structure 
4. Program Update Question and Answers 
5. Topic of Regional Interest  

9



6. Other Business 
7. Adjournment 
 
Executive Director Abousleman stated that a proposal for City/County 
Manager/Administrator advocacy would be added to the Board agenda.  
 
CSP Manager Moore stated that a memo would also need to be added, in order to change 
the name of OCWCOG’s Senior Meals program, for compliance reasons. 
 

6. Other Business 
Commissioner Schuster asked about a previous suggestion of holding monthly meetings 
relating to broadband. CED Director Warnock stated that logistics are still being worked out, 
but current plans are to send updates via email. 

 
7. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 10:27 am. 
 
Minutes recorded by Jennifer Kelley. 

10



Senior and Disability Services 
1400 Queen Ave SE • Suite 206 • Albany, OR 97322 

(541) 967-8630 TTY/Voice • 1-800-638-0510 TTY/Voice 

 
203 N Main St • Toledo, OR 97391 

(541) 336-2289 • (541) 336-8103 TTY/Voice • (800) 282-6194 

 
 

Area Agency on Aging 

MEMBER GOVERNMENTS — COUNTIES: Benton, Lincoln, and Linn CITIES: Adair Village, Albany, Brownsville, Corvallis, Depoe Bay, 
Halsey, Harrisburg, Lebanon, Lincoln City, Lyons, Millersburg, Monroe, Newport, Philomath, Scio, Siletz, Sweet Home, Tangent, Toledo, 
Waldport, Yachats OTHER: Confederated Tribes of Siletz Indians and Port of Newport  

 

 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
DATE:  December 7, 2017 
 
TO:   OCWCOG Executive Committee 
 
FROM: Senior and Disability Services (SDS) Director Randi Moore and  

Community Services Program (CSP) Manager Jennifer Moore 
 
RE:   SDS and CSP Report  

  
 

SDS           SDS Director Randi Moore 

 
Senior Services Advisory Council (SSAC) and Disability Services Advisory Council 
(DSAC) Care Planning Committee 
 
In early November, the SSAC/DSAC Care Planning Committee held its first official Committee 
meeting in five years. This Committee is tasked with gathering information on community needs 
and services, and advises the SSAC, DSAC, and SDS staff in developing plans for long-term 
care services. The Committee's first focus is to learn about the eligibility process for Medicaid. 
Other goals include addressing how SDS programs can be proactive in mitigating risk 
associated with the in-home care worker program, and helping to develop surveys for 
consumers and community partners to gather data helpful in developing SDS's five-year Area 
Plan. SSAC and DSAC members, as well a SDS staff, are looking forward to the opportunity to 
collaboratively help our communities understand the services and support provided by SDS. 
 
Legislative Visits Planned for Issues and Advocacy Committee Members 
 
In preparation for the upcoming 2018 Legislative Session, the SSAC/DSAC Issues and 
Advocacy Committee hopes to host local visits with three State legislators - Senator Arnie 
Roblan, and Representatives Andy Olsen and Dan Rayfield. The visits, which will take place in 
December and January, will be an opportunity for the elected officials to share information about 
their legislative involvements, give insight into potential work on the horizon, and share thoughts 
on the provider tax referendum that Oregonians will be voting on in 2018.  
 
Committee members will have an opportunity to thank the legislators for their hard work and 
advocacy last session, which was instrumental in keeping SDS funding whole. Members will 
also discuss priorities for February’s short legislative session. Committee members are excited 
to continue to build relationships with our advocates at the State Legislature.   
 
  

11



CSP         CSP Manager Jennifer Moore 

Meals on Wheels (MOW) 
 
Meals on Wheels (MOW) participates in a three-agency food service consortium, which requires 
semi-annual kitchen monitoring. Site visits were conducted in October at each of the three 
central kitchens: Eugene, Newport, and Salem. The consortium identified several items 
requiring further discussion and follow-up at the Salem kitchen. We will be working with the food 
service provider, Bateman Community Living, to gain positive resolution on these items.   
 
Retired and Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP), and Foster Grandparent Program (FGP) 
 
OCWCOG’s Senior Corps staff traveled to Portland on November 6-7 to participate in the 
annual Oregon Senior Corps Training. Staff reviewed Senior Corps policy and regulations, 
including specialized Office of Inspector General training, logic model development, and 
volunteer marketing strategies. The training also included a Town Hall with the Corporation for 
National and Community Service’s (CNCS) Area Manager Amy Dailey, who shared CNCS’s 
priorities for the coming year. Priorities included veteran outreach, workforce development, and 
opioid prevention strategies.  
 

Both RSVP and FGP participated in the #GivingTuesday event on November 28th at the 
Samaritan Center for Health Education in Newport. It was a tabling event providing an 
opportunity for community members to see what social services are available as causes they 
can choose to support financially. Celebrated on the Tuesday following Thanksgiving, after the 
widely recognized shopping events Black Friday and Cyber Monday, #GivingTuesday kicks off 
the charitable season, when many focus on their holiday and end-of-year giving. 
 
Veteran’s Services Office (VSO)  
 
Two members of the VSO team are in the process of completing Personal Identify Verification 
(PIV) with the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs (VA). The PIV card is an identification card 
issued by a federal agency, containing a computer chip allowing it to receive, store, recall, and 
send information in a secure method. The main function of the card is to encrypt or code data to 
strengthen the security of both employees’ and veterans’ information, as well as granting 
physical access to secured areas, while using a common technical and administrative process. 
The technology complies with all Federal and VA security policies, and is the accepted Global 
Business Standard for Internet Security. This will allow our VSO team to directly access VA 
records, enabling staff to provide better and quicker service to veterans.  
 

12



MEMBER GOVERNMENTS — COUNTIES: Benton, Lincoln, and Linn CITIES: Adair Village, Albany, Brownsville, Corvallis, Depoe Bay, 
Halsey, Harrisburg, Lebanon, Lincoln City, Lyons, Millersburg, Monroe, Newport, Philomath, Scio, Siletz, Sweet Home, Tangent, Toledo, 
Waldport, Yachats OTHER: Confederated Tribes of Siletz Indians and Port of Newport  

 

 
 

1400 Queen Ave SE • Suite 201 • Albany, OR 97322 
(541) 967-8720 • FAX (541) 967-6123 

 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 2 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

DATE:  December 7, 2017 
 
TO:  OCWCOG Executive Committee 
 
FROM: Phil Warnock, Community and Economic Development (CED) Director 
 
RE:  CED Program Update 
 

 
Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (AAMPO) 
 
AAMPO is finalizing its Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), which will guide transportation 
investments and priorities in the AAMPO area for the next 20 years. The AAMPO area 
encompasses the cities of Albany, Jefferson, Millersburg, and Tangent, as well as portions of 
Linn and Benton Counties. AAMPO is also starting work on its Unified Planning Work Program 
for Federal Fiscal Year 2018-2019, which will be reviewed by the Federal Highway 
Administration and Federal Transit Administration in February 2018.  
 
Safe Routes to School (SRTS) 
 
OCWCOG partnered with the City of Jefferson and Jefferson Elementary School to provide a 
Bike Rodeo event on Saturday, October 14th. The event provided bike safety lessons, free 
lights and helmets, and fun activities for students and community members. SRTS projects are 
being developed in Albany, Harrisburg, Jefferson, Lebanon, and Sweet Home. Schools having 
SRTS Actions Plans in place, and that have actively engaged in activities, will likely be in a good 
position to apply for SRTS infrastructure projects funded through new transportation legislation. 
 
Transportation Options  
 
The statewide Oregon Drive Less Challenge was held in September. Participants were 
encouraged to track their non-drive-alone miles through the State’s ridematching database, 
www.DriveLessConnect.com. Across Linn, Benton, and Lincoln Counties, participants tracked 
84,094 non-drive-alone miles, which resulted in a reduction of 56,777 pounds of CO2, 2,834 
gallons of gasoline, and a savings of $21,870 when compared to driving alone. This year 
marked the 5th annual statewide event, and discussions are underway to give the event a new 
look and refresh the message. 
 
Cascades West Business Lending (CWBL) 
 
The CWBL program continues to see strong activity, with three loans having funded so far this 
Fiscal Year. Loan disbursements funded from three separate programs, and totaled $767,400, 
with project amounts totaling $1,925,900. Of note, the lending department has funded its first 
Small Business Administration (SBA) 504 loan to 4 Spirits Distillery LLC, through OCWCOG’s 

13

http://www.drivelessconnect.com/


contract with CCD Business Development Corporation. A second SBA 504 loan is anticipated to 
be funded in December. 
 
Recent activity is greater than prior years, with attention growing as a result of community and 
business engagement. Particularly, there has been interest in the microloan program, which has 
previously been effective at engaging the small business and entrepreneur community. Many 
microloan recipients return to borrow through other programs in the future, as their business 
needs grow. The first microloan utilizing the new Rural Microentrepreneur Assistance Program 
is currently being processed. 
 
Cascades West Ride Line 
 
On October 5th, Ride Line submitted a grant proposal to the National Center for Mobility 
Management (NCMM) for the Health Care Access Design Challenge. The focus of the proposal 
is to address rural coastal community dialysis access. The grant will provide up to $30,000 for 
planning and technical support to seven chosen communities, to design a sustainable, 
customer-responsive solution for access to care. Requirements for this opportunity include 
developing and strengthening a broad-based coalition to better link health care and 
transportation access, engaging community stakeholders in design solutions, and preparing a 
business plan for implementation of the solution, including a recommendation for a sustainable 
funding model.  
 
Cascades West Economic Development District (CWEDD) 
 
In October, OCWCOG hosted a viewing of BroadbandUSA’s Practical Broadband 
Conversations webinar, titled Understanding the Role of Broadband in Regional Economic 
Development. With access to broadband as a driver of economic development, many 
communities are working together in their approach to providing broadband access within their 
regions. This webinar discussed the importance of broadband, as well as how regions can 
encourage economic development, growth, and innovation through providing adequate access 
in communities. 
 
Cascades West Area Commission on Transportation (CWACT) 
 
Lincoln County Commissioner Doug Hunt recently represented the CWACT at October’s Annual 
Workshop of the Oregon Transportation Commission (OTC) in Silverton. The Governor-
appointed OTC oversees the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT). The Workshop 
focused on future allocation scenarios for the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program, 
which outlines the State’s priorities for transportation capital projects. The OTC will make 
decisions in the coming months, with regard to balancing maintenance, preservation, and 
enhancements to the State’s transportation system.  
 
The CWACT continues to receive regular updates on House Bill 2017, Oregon’s landmark $5.3 
billion transportation funding package recently passed by the Legislature. The Rulemaking 
process is currently underway, relating to how investments will be allocated for transit providers 
and other recipients. CWACT is tracking and distributing information as it becomes available, 
especially when pertaining to the $25 million in funding identified in the legislation for a Mid-
Willamette Valley Intermodal Facility (MVIF). Pre-proposal submissions for the MVIF must be 
submitted to ODOT no later than December 15, 2017.  

14



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Cascades West Center 
1400 Queen Avenue, SE Suite 201 

Albany, OR 97322 
541.967.8720 


	Cover Page
	01 blank page
	EC Agenda 120717
	EC Minutes 102617
	SDS Program Update EC
	CED EC Update 112717
	99 - Back Page



